
** Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals
through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680,
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511
Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609

www.beloitwi.gov
Equal Opportunity Employer

BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

Tuesday, August 15, 2017
6:00 PM

The Forum
Beloit City Hall
100 State Street

1. Roll Call

2. Minutes of the July 11, 2017 Meeting

3. Erick Johnson – 2386 Tara Court
BOA-2017-03 Public Hearing and Review of a Land Management Plan to allow a natural
lawn exceeding eight (8) inches in height for the single-family residential property located at
2386 Tara Court.

4. Adjournment

If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at (608) 364-6700 no later
than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting.

Notice Mailed: August 10, 2017
Approved: Drew Pennington, AICP, Director of Planning & Building Services



Page 1 of 2

MINUTES
CITY OF BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS

Meeting of July 11, 2017

A Meeting of the City of Beloit Board of Appeals was held on Tuesday, July 11, 2017, in The
Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. Chairperson John Schroer called the meeting to
order at 7:00 PM.

1. Roll Call
Director of Planning & Building Services Drew Pennington called the roll. Present were:
John Schroer, Merlin Bussan, Carolyn Hansen, Willis Zick, and Dustin Gronau. John
Petersen was absent.

2. Election of Officers
a. Nomination and election of Chairperson

Ms. Hansen nominated Mr. Schroer for Chairperson, seconded by Mr. Bussan. Mr.
Schroer accepted the nomination. The Board voted unanimously to elect Mr. Schroer
as the Chairperson.

b. Nomination and election of Vice-Chairperson
Ms. Hansen nominated Mr. Bussan for Vice-Chairperson, seconded by Mr. Schroer.
Mr. Bussan accepted the nomination. The Board voted unanimously to elect Mr.
Bussan as the Vice-Chairperson.

c. Nomination and election of 2nd Vice-Chairperson
Mr. Schroer nominated Mr. Zick for 2nd Vice-Chairperson, seconded by Mr. Bussan.
Mr. Zick accepted the nomination. The Board voted unanimously to elect Mr. Zick
as the 2nd Vice-Chairperson.

3. Approval of the Minutes of the May 9, 2017 Meeting
Ms. Hansen made a motion to approve the May 9, 2017 Minutes as submitted. Mr. Zick
seconded the motion. The motion passed (5-0), voice vote.

4. Gerald Nichols – 964 Cleveland Street
BOA-2017-02 Area Variance to Section 6.3.4(d) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance
to allow the total area of a detached accessory structure (garage) to exceed 720 square
feet, for the property located at 964 Cleveland Street.

Mr. Pennington reviewed the staff report and recommendation.

Mr. Bussan asked Mr. Pennington if the 720 square-foot maximum garage area standard
is consistently enforced, and Mr. Pennington confirmed that it is consistently enforced.
Mr. Schroer asked Mr. Pennington if Merrill Street would be reconstructed soon, and he
responded that he did not know. There were no further questions of staff.



Page 2 of 2

Mr. Schroer opened the public hearing. Mr. Nichols identified himself as the applicant,
and summarized his statement of hardship as included in the application. Mr. Zick asked
Mr. Nichols when he purchased his large boat, and Mr. Nichols stated that it was
purchased last year. Mr. Zick asked Mr. Nichols if he checked the zoning standards
relating to garages before buying the boat, and Mr. Nichols stated that he did not, as he
originally planned to keep the boat at a storage facility.

Ms. Hansen asked Mr. Nichols if his neighbors support his proposal, and Mr. Nichols
stated that he’s spoken to 3 or 4 neighbors who support his plan. Ms. Hansen asked Mr.
Nichols how he arrived at the proposed dimensions, and he responded that he considered
a narrower garage, but that he needed enough width for his truck and boat.

Mr. Zick asked Mr. Nichols if he could comply with the maximum garage size in the
ordinance, and he stated that he would have to sell his boat and buy a shorter boat in
order to comply, which would cost him $10K to $15K. Mr. Schroer questioned the
relevancy of the boat discussion, and Mr. Zick and Mr. Schroer discussed whether or not
needing to sell one’s property and buy smaller property could be considered hardship.
Mr. Zick asked Mr. Nichols when he planned to start building the garage, and Mr.
Nichols stated that he hoped to start as soon as possible. Mr. Schroer closed the public
hearing.

Mr. Bussan stated that he agreed with the draft findings of fact in the staff report, and
noted that four of the five criteria had not been met. Mr. Zick asked Mr. Pennington to
clarify his position regarding the lack of hardship. Mr. Pennington stated that the
applicant is voluntarily seeking to build a large garage to enclose his recreational
vehicles, which does not qualify as hardship in staff’s opinion. Mr. Zick stated his
opinion that the five criteria for granting a variance have not been met.

Ms. Hansen made a motion to deny the requested variance. Mr. Bussan seconded the
motion. The motion passed (5-0), voice vote.

5. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Drew Pennington, AICP



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court

REPORT TO THE BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS

Meeting Date: August 15, 2017 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: BOA-2017-03

Applicant: Erick Johnson Owner: Erick & Stephanie Johnson Location: 2386 Tara Court

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family Parcel Size: 0.596 Acre

Request:
Erick Johnson has requested Board of Appeals review and consideration of a Land Management Plan to allow a natural
lawn exceeding eight (8) inches in height for the single-family residential property located at 2386 Tara Court.

Request Overview/Background Information:
According to Section 2-1201 of the Zoning Ordinance, any owner of land one-half acre or more in size may apply to the
Zoning Officer for approval of a Land Management Plan for a natural lawn exceeding eight (8) inches in height. When
such an application is received, a notice is sent to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property. If at least 51%
of the notified property owners file written objections to the Plan with the Zoning Officer, the Zoning Officer must refer the
application to the Board of Appeals for hearing and decision, which is the case with the subject property.

Key Issues:
 After investigating a complaint about tall grass & weeds on the subject property, a City of Beloit Code

Enforcement Official sent the attached notice to the applicant, which invoked Section 7.235 of the Property
Maintenance Code and required the grass to be mowed by July 31, 2017.

 On July 21, 2017, the applicant submitted the attached Land Management Plan application.
 On July 25, 2017, Planning staff sent the attached Public Notice to property owners within 200 feet.
 On August 3, 2017, the neighbors submitted the attached petition, which qualifies as a written objection to the

proposed Land Management Plan. The petition is signed by ten (10) neighboring property owners.
 On August 9, 2017, the applicant submitted the attached planting list and marked-up aerial photo.
 As shown on the attached aerial photo, the subject property is a corner property at the SW corner of Oak Lane

Drive and Tara Court in the Lather’s Woods Neighborhood.
 According to the applicant, the Plan includes tall grass, natives, and wildflowers and is intended to allow small oak

saplings to grow to maintain the wooded feel of the lot. The attached Planting List includes wildflowers, grasses,
sedges, & rushes. The photo taken by Code Enforcement is attached, and the applicant has indicated that he will
be submitting hard copy photos at the meeting.

 If the applicant’s request is approved by the Board of Appeals, he will be allowed to keep the natural lawn but will
need to comply with the mowing requirements in Section 2-1202, which require mowing the areas from the street
to 5 feet back from the front property line and at least a 5-foot strip adjacent to neighboring property lines.

 If the applicant’s request is denied, he will need to mow the entire lawn by a deadline established by Code
Enforcement.

 The City has approved a total of 5 Land Management Plans for commercial and institutional properties in the last
decade. This application is the first request pertaining to a single-family residential property.

Attachments: Land Management Plan (2), Planting List, Photo, Notice of Violation, Public Notice, Mailing List,
Neighborhood Petition (2), and Application (2).



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court



August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court





August 15 Staff Report, BOA-2017-03, 2386 Tara Court


